
     
 

All public meetings and events sponsored or conducted by the County of Marin are held in accessible sites. Requests for 
accommodations may be requested by calling (415) 473-4381 (voice) (415) 473-3232 (TTY) at least four work days in 
advance of the event. Copies of documents are available in alternative formats, upon written request. 

Contact the County’s Waste Management Division, at (415) 473-6530 for more information 
 

 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (aka ZERO WASTE MARIN) 
 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday, May 19, 2022 

 
11:30 A.M. 1:00 P.M. – Hybrid Format 

In-Person: 240 Tamal Vista Boulevard, Suite 108 
Online: Participation Instructions on Next Page 

 
AGENDA 

  
Call to Order 

 
1. Open Time for Public Comment. (Information Only) 5 Minutes 

 
Consent Calendar (Action) 2 Minutes 

 
2. JPA Board Meeting Minutes from August 26, 2021. (Action) 
 

Regular Agenda 
 
3. Introduction of New Interim Executive Director Davidson. (Information Only) 5 Minutes 
 
4. Receive Presentation from San Rafael Fire Department on the Marin Household Hazardous Waste 

Annual Report.  (Action) 10 Minutes 
 
5. Update on and Demonstration of “Recyclist” SB 1383 Reporting Software. (Information Only) 20 

Minutes. 
 

6. Update on Executive Director Recruitment and Other Matters.  (Action) 10 Minutes 
 

7. This Item Removed from the Agenda. 
 

8. Draft, Proposed FY 22-23 Budget. (Action) 30 Minutes 
 
9. Adjournment. 

 
The next JPA Board Meeting time and date is scheduled for June 16, 2022. 
• Agendas & staff reports also available at:  http://zerowastemarin.org/Agenda 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\AGENDA\22-05-19.docx 5/17/2022 8:40 AM 

http://zerowastemarin.org/Agenda


Special Instructions on Public Participation 
 
The public can participate in this Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Joint 
Powers Authority (Zero Waste Marin) Board Meeting via a Zoom webinar on May 19, 
2022 from 11:30 am – 1:00 pm. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Zoom Meeting: 
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar:  
 

Thursday, May 19, 2022 
11:30 A.M. – Hybrid Format 

In-Person: 240 Tamal Vista Blvd, Suite 108 
Virtual: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/93575341034 

 
Or One tap mobile :  
    US: +14086380968,,93575341034#  or +16699006833,,93575341034#  
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 
7799  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592  
 
Webinar ID: 935 7534 1034 
    International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdFYTIAr3g 
 
During the Meeting, select the Raise Hand icon during the public comment time and you 
will be added to the queue and unmuted when it is your turn. 
  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
If you are “Calling In,” press *9 during the public comment time and you will be added to 
the queue and unmuted when it is your turn. (Press *67 before dialing if you want to 
hide your phone number.)  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 220303\item 0 - special participation instructions.docx 

5/17/2022 8:39 AM
 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F93575341034&data=05%7C01%7CBDavidson%40marincounty.org%7C4d782b7fea774725bf5608da352560cb%7Cd272712e54ee458485b3934c194eeb6d%7C0%7C0%7C637880731903078796%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NlEv5f%2BjooojTj1bJpQZCYh7%2FJCChemKra%2FeC27rEBo%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fu%2FkdFYTIAr3g&data=05%7C01%7CBDavidson%40marincounty.org%7C4d782b7fea774725bf5608da352560cb%7Cd272712e54ee458485b3934c194eeb6d%7C0%7C0%7C637880731903078796%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9uo3n7QX2tX6Ot17okmCW0DWVA7pM0IA8h7bl9fGJRA%3D&reserved=0


1 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

Nb,km 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Berenice Davidson, Interim Executive Director 
 
Re: Open Time for Public Comment 
 
The public is welcome to address the Board of Directors at this time on 
matters not on the agenda that are within its jurisdiction. Please be 
advised that pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Board 
is not permitted to discuss or act on any matter not on the agenda unless 
it determines that an emergency exists, or that there is a need to take 
immediate action which arose following posting of the agenda.  
 
Recommendation 
Receive public comment.  Information Only. 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 220519\item 1 - open time for public comment.docx 
5/15/2022 11:11 AM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



1 of 4 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday, August 26, 2021 

Meeting Online Only via Zoom 
2:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Cristine Alilovich, San Rafael (Alt.) 
Greg Chanis, (Chair) Tiburon 
Todd Cusimano, Corte Madera 
Adam McGill, (Vice Chair) Novato 
Dan Eilerman, County of Marin (Alt.) 
Alan Piombo, Mill Valley 
Dan Schwarz, Larkspur 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Adam Politzer, Fairfax 
Chris Zapata, Sausalito 
Craig Middleton, Belvedere 
Joe Chinn, Ross 
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Liz Lewis, Interim Exec. Director 
Steve Devine, Program Manager 
Casey Poldino, Senior Planner 
Kishanna Townsend, Admin Associate 
 
 
LTF MEMBERS PRESENT 
Molly DeVries, Southern Marin  
Renee Goddard, LTF Chair Ross Valley 
Vicki Nichols, Marin Cons League 
 
 
 
 

1.Open Time for Public Comment 
No public comments were tendered.  
 

Consent Calendar 
 
2. Approval of the JPA Board Meeting Minutes from July 22, 2021 
Motion: by Roll Call Vote to approve the JPA Board Meeting Minutes from July 
22, 2021.  Motion by Mr. Piombo,  Second by unintelligible in recording.  Vote: 
Unanimous.  

 
 

3. Ordinance on AB 901 Reporting Requirements   
Ms. Poldino discussed that AB 901 took effect July 2, 2019 and that the bill 
revised reporting requirements under the California Integrated Waste 
Management Act.  The main focus of the proposed ordinance is to address an 
impact of the law in that disposal facilities and haulers report data directly to Cal 
Recycle, thus bypassing the JPA.  Without access to timely, annual, disposal 
tonnage data from Marin’s local haulers, transfer station, and landfill – the JPA 
would be unable to accurately file the required “Electronic Annual Report” for 



2 of 4 
 

Marin and also calculate the accurate distribution of the Revenue Requirements 
associated with the JPA Assessments levied on the haulers, transfer station and 
landfill that fund the agency operations, household hazardous waste programs, 
etc.   
 
The ordinance requires that collectors, processors and disposal facilities shall 
report the weight of solid waste that is collected within their jurisdictions of origin 
on an annual basis and submit to the JPA no later than March 1st of the following 
calendar year. This practice has been conducted for almost 25 years now and 
works well and is essential to preserve to ensure continued smooth operations 
serving the community. The draft ordinance was circulated to the impacted 
stakeholders and positive feedback was received. The recommended action was 
to Adopt Ordinance No. 2021-01: AB 901 Reporting Requirement Ordinance.  
Motion by Mr. Cusimano Second by Mr. Piombo. Vote: Unanimous.  
 

Regular Agenda 
 

4. Update from Zero Waste Plan and Organizational Assessment Subcommittee 
and Possible Direction to Staff   Ms. Lewis introduced the item relating to the 
Zero Waste Plan update at the July 22nd meeting, and they have been working 
closely with the sub-committee, including Greg Chanis, Cristine Alilovich, Todd 
Cusimano, Dave Donery and Dan Eilerman.  Recommendations were discussed 
for how to structure the Zero Waste Marin JPA and staff to move forward with the 
next phases. Those recommendations included: Consideration of a full-time 
Executive Director, increasing the frequency of Board meetings and additional 
engagement of elected officials and the public as well as additional staffing to 
meet the objectives described in the Zero Waste Plan Update. The ZWM 
consultant R3, prepared the attached organizational assessment provided to the 
sub-committee on May 18, in addition to the Zero Waste Plan update.  There 
were minor revisions recommended by the subcommittee and a draft dated 
August 17th, which was circulated to the Board as well as to members of the local 
task force and interested public.   
 
The Organizational Assessment looked at how similar JPAs operate within the 
Bay Area, and that information is included in the report as well as an overview of 
financing and other related metrics that the agencies use.  Much of the 
discussion at the last meeting was regarding the Executive Director position. 
 
Chair Chanis continued that the updated Zero Waste Plan adopted at the last 
meeting is an ambitious, long term look.  The first step is to look at the structure 
of the organization.  The sub-committee met last week and discussed the 
organizational assessment part of what R3 drafted and looked at three basic 
options:  JPA would become an employer and hire all of its’ own staff.  The 
second option is to hire an independent ED who reports to the JPA and maybe 
use a hybrid model regarding staffing.  The third option is to move forward with 
all positions within the County but working with the County to structure an 



3 of 4 
 

arrangement where the Zero Waste Board has an elevated role in staffing 
decisions. 
 
At the end of the meeting, the consensus was to continue the Agency’s 
relationship with the County via an agreement on how staffing will be supplied.  
Regarding the ED position, the Board would be more involved in the hiring 
process and the ongoing assessment of that position. 
 
We should have a quick action item to formally accept the organizational 
assessment that R3 did as final and approve.  This doesn’t require an action, but 
just get a sense from the Board if they agree with the sub-committee’s intent to 
work with the County with a more formal arrangement. 
 
Mr. Eilerman commented that the next step would be for the sub-committee to 
get together and determine how to best work with the County. 
 
Public member Renee Goddard, Chair of the Local Task Force, commented that 
after reading the minutes, she noticed there were a number of LTF members at 
the last meeting.  The Executive Summary organizational assessment by R3 
clearly depicts the plight of the LTF, and she particularly appreciated the 
assessment, under the Government section, of the Executive Summary where it 
stated that the role of the LTF needs to be clarified and used as a resource for 
Zero Waste Marin and member agencies through the JPA agreement and the 
public resources code.  The LTF was initially given significant responsibility, but 
over time it has lost its focus and its current purpose is unclear.  Ms. Goddard 
requested that a clear communication go out to LTF members that describes the 
organization. 
 
LTF member Vickie Nichols spoke next.  She is a member of the Marin 
Conservation League and she expressed some confusion about the role of LTF 
and how she can be effective. 
 
Molly DeVries spoke next.  She is on the public seat for the LTF for Southern 
Marin.  She reiterated previous comments from Ms. Nichols and Ms. Goddard 
and expressed that she would like to do more work. 
 
Mr. Chanis commented that the Zero Waste Marin plan includes information from 
the Local Task Force and one of the key pieces is to figure out a way to integrate 
them better into the work of Zero Waste Marin. 
 
Mr. Eilerman commented that he agreed with Mr. Chanis’ statements and 
believes it will be critical to have additional input from the public, especially 
regarding the four phases as outlined in the Zero Waste plan. 
 
Motion by Mr. Chanis to formally accept the R3 Organizational Assessment 
Report as final. Second: by Mr. Eilerman. Vote: Unanimous.  
 



4 of 4 
 

5. Adjournment 
The next JPA Board Meeting is scheduled for September 23, 2021 at 2:30 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
Board Chair:  Please confirm the vote on this item by reading the following items 

out loud after the vote. 
 
Motion:       Second:      
 
 
Ayes  _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
  __________________________________     
        
 
Noes:  None           
 
 
             
 
Abstentions: None           
  
F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 220303\Item 2 - Minutes from 08262021 JPA Board Meeting v2.docx 

 5/15/2022 11:12 AM 



3 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 

 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
 
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
 
 
Larkspur 
 
 
Mill Valley 
 
 
Novato 
 
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
 
 
San Rafael 
 
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Berenice Davidson, Interim Executive Director 
 
Re: Introduction Berenice Davidson 
 
Ms. Davidson has been working for the County of Marin Department of 
Public Works since 2001 at various capacities and as of January 2022, 
Ms. Davidson is the Marin County Department of Public Works 
Engineering Assistant Director overseeing the Flood Control & Water 
Conservation District and the Land Development, Stormwater and Waste 
Management Divisions.  
 
Ms. Davidson has a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering 
from the University of the Pacific. Ms. Davidson has six years of 
engineering project delivery experience from the private sector and 
twenty years in the public sector.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive Oral Report.  Information Only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 210225\Item 3 - Introduce Liz Lewis Interim Executive 
Director.docx 

5/15/2022 11:15 AM 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 



4 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon 
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: Receive Presentation from San Rafael Fire Department on the 

Marin Household Hazardous Waste Program Annual Report 
 
The JPA funds Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) and small business 
(Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators) services for Marin 
(except for Novato) via a contract with the City of San Rafael Fire 
Department, which in turn contracts with the Marin Recycling & 
Resource Recovery Association for the operation of the HHW facility at 
565 Jacoby Street in San Rafael. The program also provides for several 
“Toxic Away Days” in the more remote, West Marin. 
 
The HHW program continues to be a very popular service and in FY 
20/21 the program collected over 1.5 million pounds of hazardous 
materials. 
 
This program is the single largest, tangible pollution prevention service in 
the County. 
 
The vast majority of materials received at the facility are either directed 
for recycling or fuel incineration. 60% of the material is recycled, 25% is 
sent for fuel recovery, and 6%is reused.  Administrative Fire Chief 
Robert Sinnott will provide the Board with a presentation. 
 
Recommendation: 
Receive an oral report from the City of San Rafael Fire Department and 
Marin Resource Recovery Association and Adopt a Motion to receive 
and file attached report from the City of San Rafael Fire Department. 
 
Attachment: 
 
1. Marin Household Hazardous Waste Program – Fiscal Year 2020/21 

Report. 
 



Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

Board Chair:  Please confirm the vote on this item by reading the following items out 
loud after the vote. 

 
 
Motion:       Second:       
 
Ayes:             
   
              
 
Noes:              
 
              
 
Abstentions:             

 
 
 
 

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 220519\item 4 - sr fire hhw annual report.docx 5/15/2022 11:17 AM 



-1- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Marin Household Hazardous Waste 
Program 

 
Fiscal Year 2020/21 

Report 
 

 
 
 



-2- 

 

 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Summary   
 
The Marin Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Program had another productive and 
successful year, once again ending FY 2020/21 (July 2020 – June 2021) significantly 
under budget while maintaining exemplary service.  
 
Despite the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the HHW Facility has maintained continuity of 
operations and remains open to the public five days a week with enhanced safety 
measures. HHW Facility staff added pandemic-related signage to the premises and 
adapted to personal protective equipment (PPE) supply chain challenges by replacing 
disposable suits with reusable suits.  
   

The HHW Facility welcomed a new HHW Operations 
Associate, Jonathan (“Jony”) Cervantes, on November 16, 
2020. 
 
Finally, two successful West Marin Toxic Away Day 
temporary collection events were held, one in November 
2020 in Bolinas and another in May 2021 in Point Reyes 
Station. Approximately 120 residents participated, 
collectively bringing in more than 11,000 pounds of 
household hazardous waste. 
 

  



-3- 

 

HHW Program Overview    
 
The Marin HHW Program is a combination of HHW services provided at the Marin HHW 
Facility and at West Marin Toxic Away Days. Residents of Marin County, except Novato, 
may drop off their HHW at the facility or at the collection events for free, and residents of 
San Rafael may have their waste picked up from their house for a fee. Conditionally 
Exempt Small Quantity Generator (CESQG)1 businesses may drop off their hazardous 
waste for a fee. The facility is operated by Marin Recycling & Resource Recovery 
Association and managed by the San Rafael Fire Department. 
 
The Marin HHW Facility offers a reuse area where like-new products are available for 
residents and businesses to take for free. The reuse area is open to the public during 
facility hours. Additionally, we offer reprocessed latex paint for a fee to the public and to 
local jurisdictions for the use of graffiti abatement, offered in white, beige, and gray.  
 
Household battery collection bins are conveniently located at fire stations and select 
businesses across Marin County. These bins are only for use by Marin County 
households and the batteries are then brought to the Marin HHW Facility and sent for 
recycling. This program is run separately from the JPA’s Bulb and Battery Program. 
 
The following table is a brief summary of the number of people who participated in the 
Marin HHW Program and the amount of waste that was collected in FY 2020/21. The 
HHW Program collected 1,608,861 pounds of hazardous waste overall, up 6.1% from 
the FY 2019/20 total of 1,516,269 pounds.  
 

Program Type Pounds Collected 
Household 
Participants 

CESQG 
Participants 

Marin HHW Facility 1,597,649 30,003 318 

Bolinas Toxic Away Day 5,263 40* N/A 

Pt. Reyes Toxic Away Day 5,950 80* N/A 

Reuse Area 46,234 N/A 
*=approximate total; does not account for walk-ins 
 
  

Budget 
 
The HHW Facility’s FY 2020/21 budget allocation was $1,748,166, a 2.5% increase from 
the FY 2019/20 budget of $1,705,528. Financially, the Marin HHW Program ended the 
year $57,480 under budget.  
 
Over the course of the fiscal year, the Marin HHW Program recovered $98,985 in 
outside funding; most of this came from CESQGs, with additional money received from 
battery recycling.   
 
Separately, the San Rafael Fire Department organized two Toxic Away Day events, with 
total expenses of $21,633.  

 
1 Entities that generate no more than 100 kilograms (220 pounds) of hazardous waste per month. The term 

CESQG is no longer being used in federal regulations, having been replaced by VSQG (Very Small-

Quantity Generator) in 2017. However, the California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) 

does not yet reference VSQG in its regulations or statutes.    



-4- 

 

HHW Facility 2020/2021 Actual Results 

  

Expense Item   Actual 
  

Classified Personnel              521,177.21  

Overtime Pay                             -    

Vacation pay                  45,639.47  

Group Life/Health Insurance                  97,706.24  

Worker's Compensation                  52,039.57  

Retirement                  26,347.34  

Payroll Taxes                  47,438.82  

PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL  $    790,348.65  

  

Legal and Professional                          5,914.55  

Travel & Conference                          2,969.72  

Training Instruction & Medical Examinations                  4,278.31  

Professional Dues and Subscriptions                          1,183.53  

Equipment Rental/Repair                          3,400.00 

Waste Disposal Costs                433,206.99  

Advertising & Community Promotions                             289.74  

Insurance & Surety Bonds                  14,458.20  

Admin. Allocation                  70,601.10  

Office Supplies                  29,852.40  

Clothing & PPE Supplies                  36,939.36  

Miscellaneous Supplies & Materials                      102,995.65  

Maintenance Buildings & Improvements                        35,383.09  

NON-PERSONNEL SUBTOTAL  $    741,472.64  

  

Operating Ratio      160,798.92  

Rental/Land        97,050.24  

EXPENSES SUBTOTAL  $ 1,789,670.45  

  

OUTSIDE FUNDING SOURCES:  

E-Waste Monies                                    (0) 

Batteries Monies                        (7,738.00) 

Paint Sale Monies                                    (0) 

CESQG Monies                      (91,246.89) 

OUTSIDE FUNDING SUBTOTAL   $ (98,984.89) 

  

GRAND TOTAL  $ 1,690,685.56  

  

Approved Budget for FY 2020/21  $  1,748,166.00  

Under budget             $  57,480.44 

 



-5- 

 

 

Temporary HHW Collection Events 2020/21 Expenses 
 
Expense Item 

       
Actual 

  
Labor Costs  
Bolinas $2,790  

Pt. Reyes Station $3,780  

Labor Costs Subtotal $6,570  

  
Disposal Costs  
Bolinas $3,398  

Pt. Reyes Station $5,791  

Disposal Costs Subtotal $9,189  

  
Supply Purchase Costs  
Bolinas $1,325  

Pt. Reyes Station $2,573  

Supply Purchase Costs Subtotal $3,898  

  

E-Manifest Fees  

Bolinas $75  

Pt. Reyes Station $100  

E-Manifest Fees Subtotal $175  
  

Outreach Costs  

Bolinas                                                                                             $900  

Pt. Reyes Station $900  

Outreach Costs Subtotal $1,800  
  

GRAND TOTAL: $21,633  

  

                    
 

  



-6- 

 

Waste Analysis 

 
The following waste totals include the West Marin Toxic Away Days.   
 
The facility continues to save money by partnering with PaintCare, which pays the San 
Rafael Fire Department to take certain latex and oil-based paint products from the facility 
for recycling. The oil-based paint category only includes items on PaintCare’s accepted 
materials list; it does not include paint that has been bulked with other flammable liquids. 
About 39% of the Marin HHW Facility’s annual waste (by weight) went to PaintCare, with 
paint-related materials such as thinners and resins that are not a part of PaintCare 
accounting for an additional 14.6% of HHW program waste.  
 

 

 
* = “Batteries” category includes household, rechargeable, and car batteries. These are individually listed in 
the table on page 8. 
** = Quantities of other waste types are included in the table on page 8. 
 
 
 

Latex Paint, 
34.1%

Paint-Related 
Materials, 

14.6%E-Waste, 13.3%

Flammable and 
Poisonous, 

13.2%

Batteries*, 6.6%

Oil-Based Paint, 
4.9%

Bases, 2.8%

Motor Oil/Oil 
Products, 2.7% Lamps, 1.9%

Other**, 
5.9%

HHW Program Waste Type



-7- 

 

HHW Program Waste Totals by Type in Pounds 
 

Waste Type Pounds % Of Total 

Latex Paint 548,597 34.1% 

Paint-Related Materials 234,460 14.6% 

E-Waste 214,646 13.3% 

Flammable and Poisonous 212,750 13.2% 

Oil-Based Paint 78,309 4.9% 

Household Batteries 70,678 4.4% 

Bases 45,728 2.8% 

Motor Oil/Oil Products 43,274 2.7% 

Lamps 30,375 1.9% 

Car Batteries 25,716 1.6% 

Aerosol Cans 22,622 1.4% 

Asbestos 20,030 1.2% 

Acids 13,053 0.8% 

Antifreeze 10,360 0.6% 

Rechargeable Batteries 9,439 0.6% 

Oxidizers 5,434 0.3% 

Used Oil Filters 1,835 0.1% 

PCB-containing 1,242 0.1% 

Sharps 920 0.1% 

Thermostats 0 0.0% 

Mercury-Containing Items (except 
Thermostats) 

45 0.0% 

Unclassified 19,348 1.2% 

FY 20/21 Total: 1,608,861  

FY 20/21 Monthly Average: 134,072  

  
           
Destination Method 
 
Destination methods are based on the CalRecycle 303a reporting categories. In 
absolute terms, more waste (by weight) was recycled in FY 2020/21 than in the previous 
fiscal year; however, the percentage of waste being recycled was down slightly, from 
61% to 60%. Common waste items that are recycled are latex paint, e-waste, batteries, 
and motor oil. 
 
Other destination percentages are similar to those from prior years. Only 1.3% of waste 
was landfilled.  
 
Reuse as a share of waste stayed about the same. Most of the reused items were e-
waste, household cleaners, pesticides, and paint products. 
 
There are two types of incineration: destructive and fuel. The goal of destructive 
incineration is to simply destroy the material. During fuel incineration, energy is 
recovered through the burning process and sometimes material will also be recovered. 



-8- 

 

The most common types of HHW used for fuel incineration are oil-based paint and 
flammable liquids, while poisons make up the majority of the waste sent for destructive 
incineration.   
 
Among household hazardous wastes, only acids and bases go through neutralization 
and treatment. During this process, the pH of the waste is chemically adjusted to remove 
the hazard. 
 
2,350 pounds of oxidizers were sent for stabilization, during which waste is brought to a 
solid or semi-solid state and is rendered non-hazardous. 
 
Nearly all the landfilled waste consisted of asbestos.  
 

 
 
 
 

Destructive 
Incineration

4.5% Fuel 
Incineration

25.1%

Landfill
1.3%

Neutralization/ 
Treatment

3.0%

Recycled
60.0%

Reused
6.0%

Stabilization
0.1%

Destination Method for All Program Waste



-9- 

 

Residential Participation 
 
Participants are sorted by jurisdiction by reviewing the mailing address on their 
identifying documentation. Residents from unincorporated communities adjacent to a city 
thus are likely to be counted as city residents; for example, residents of Tamalpais 
Valley are counted as residents of Mill Valley. To account for this, city populations are 
based on U.S. Census ZIP Code Tabulation Area (ZCTA) data. The data show that 
residents from all over the service area use the facility. Residential participation, as 
measured by number of customers, increased from 26,935 to 30,003 (11.4%) from FY 
2019/20 to FY 2020/21. The jurisdiction with the largest increase in per-capita 
participation was Larkspur. 

 

 

 * = City population based on ZIP Code Tabulation Area (ZCTA) data from U.S. Census Bureau  

Belvedere, 0.7%

Corte Madera, 
5.5%

Fairfax, 5.7%
Larkspur, 6.8%

Mill Valley, 
13.0%

Ross, 1.0%

San Anselmo, 
9.9%

San Rafael, 
40.3%

Sausalito, 4.3%

Tiburon, 4.4%

Unincorporated Marin 
County, 8.4%

Residential Participation by Jurisdiction

100

167
195

302

122

243

188
168

113 124
102

154 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Participants per 1,000 Residents*



-10- 

 

 
CESQG Participation  

 
Although businesses from all over the county bring their hazardous waste to the facility, 
more than half were from a single jurisdiction: San Rafael. Business participation stayed 
mostly unchanged, rising from 316 in FY 2019/20 to 318 in FY 2020/21.  
 

 
  

                    

Belvedere, 0.9%

Corte Madera, 
3.8%

Fairfax, 1.6% Larkspur, 5.7%
Mill Valley, 

7.5%

Ross, 0.6%

San Anselmo, 
3.5%

San Rafael, 
57.2%

Sausalito, 5.0%

Tiburon, 3.8%

Unincorporated 
Marin County, 

10.4%

CESQG Participation by Jurisdiction



-11- 

 

           
 
 
Looking Forward: FY 2021/22 and Beyond  
 
The HHW Program continues to seek out innovative approaches for enhancing recycling 
and reuse opportunities.  
 
During FY 2020/21, Facility staff evaluated its vendor relationships and selected a new 
primary waste hauler, ACT Environmental, which began servicing the HHW Facility in 
July 2021. This switch in waste hauler is expected to save money without having any 
negative impacts on operations.  
 
The HHW Facility also anticipates adding online appointment scheduling via its website 
in the near future, enhancing the customer experience. 
 
Unfortunately, regulatory confusion remains over how to handle certain waste streams – 
including treated wood waste, e-cigarettes, cannabis products, and solar panels. This 
has put the Facility in the undesirable position of having to turn away service to 
customers without providing them with a reasonable alternative. Space constraints also 
make acceptance of bulky waste streams difficult. 
 
Despite these and other challenges, our excellent and hard-working staff will continue 
our mission to provide a safe and convenient way for members of the public and small 
businesses to dispose of their hazardous waste. We are happy to serve the Marin 
County community and grateful for their support. 



5 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon 
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board Members 
 
From: Casey Poldino, Senior Planner 
 
Re: Update on and Demonstration of Recyclist “SB 1383” Reporting 

Software 
 
To help facilitate individual jurisdiction reporting (including Member 
Agencies and the additional ten Special District Franchising Solid Waste 
in the County) to the State Agency CalRecycle on SB 1383 and other 
reporting requirements, your Board included in the current year budget, 
funds to contract with “Recyclist”. Recyclist is cloud-based software, 
designed to facilitate portions of State of California SB 1383 reporting.   
Recyclist’s Software as a Service products — used by cities, counties 
and waste haulers — provide visibility into waste stream data, innovative 
ways to track commercial outreach and compliance, and state-of-the-art 
digital recycling education.  
 
The software tracks service data and service changes for commercial 
and multi-family accounts. It manages education and outreach, tasks 
and activities, and audits and assessments. It also tracks data on edible 
food recovery entities and edible food generators. This data can then be 
compiled and administered to CalRecycle for reporting.  
 
Because of the multi-jurisdictional nature of Marin County’s solid waste 
system, Zero Waste Marin is providing access to Recyclist for all the  
jurisdictions franchising solid waste in Marin. That said, with SB 1383 
“drilling down” to each individual “jurisdiction” (City, Town, 
Unincorporated County, plus ten Special Districts) – the system should 
be viewed more as a tool (akin to TurboTax) but with each agency still 
needing to report directly to CalRecycle on the many performance 
metrics contained in SB 1383.  Initial hauler data from all five haulers 
has been uploaded. We have the most recent jurisdictional contacts (21 
agencies X two representatives, where available) as Attachment 3. It is 
the responsibility of each jurisdiction to notify Zero Waste Marin of 
staff/user changes as they occur. Please review this information is 
accurate for your jurisdiction. It will be important for the Member 
Agencies and Special Districts to participate fully in the upcoming 
training. The training is scheduled for May 24th at 2:00 p.m and will be 
recorded.    



Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

CalRecycle only released a beta preview of how their electronic reporting 
systems might look in terms of “receiving” SB 1383 reports on February 17th – 
and that system is not designed to communicate directly with any third-party 
reporting facilitation systems.  Unfortunately this differs from say the California 
Electronic Reporting System (CERS) that the CUPA (Certified Unified Program 
Agency) groups are afforded – which is much more streamlined system. 
 
It should also be noted that Recyclist is not a substitute for each jurisdiction’s 
need to work directly with CalRecycle on separate logins and reporting 
requirements into CalRecycle systems (“Logic” and “Electronic Annual Reports 
(EAR).”)  The data capture and organization services that Recyclist provides will 
be a valuable tool in reporting into Logic and EARs – but it is not a substitute for 
it. 
 
Zero Waste Marin will administer the software and every jurisdiction will have its 
own login credentials. The logins are being created based on the submission of 
primary and secondary reporting liaisons from each jurisdiction. The secure 
logins are person specific and everything done inside of the software gets tagged 
to that user for security and tracking purposes. Jurisdictions will only be able to 
see their own franchise data. This software facilitates a good portion of the data 
retention requirements of SB 1383 and also is a valuable service to Marin’s 
waste haulers – because it allows them to export data helping their Franchisors 
without having to potentially do that for twenty different franchisors.  

 
 

Recommendation 
Information Only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Recyclist Tracker Features Summary 
2. Recyclist Contract 
3. SB 1383 Reporting Jurisdictions Contact List 
 
  
f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 220519\item 5 - demonstration of recyclist software.docx 5/15/2022 11:47 
AM
 



Simple, elegant technology solutions 
to complex environmental challenges

Fewer Spreadsheets, More Collaboration

https://recyclist.co/

 Customers: Cities, Counties, JPAs, WMA/SWAs 
    Sanitary Districts, Universities, Non-Profits, Haulers  

 Program Tracker: Recordkeeping & Reporting  
    for over 27% of all Jurisdictions in California

At a Glance…

Collaborative data 
collection solutions 
for work in the field.

Compliance Tracking:
 Local Ordinances
 Recycling Mandates
 Waste Audits

Software Solution

Tracking and Scheduling:
 Outreach
 Inspections
 Enforcement

24 jurisdictions

5 Haulers

Environmental
Health

Code
Enforcement

Food Recovery
Organizations

Consultants

Edible Food
Generators FacilitiesThe 

Authority

COLLABORATIVE RECORD KEEPING

Stored in 
One Central 

Location

Accessible to 
CalRecycle

Within 
10 Business Days

Updated 
Within 

60 Days

SB 1383 RECORDKEEPING 
REQUIREMENTS

 Time and money savings 

 Seamless stakeholder collaboration 

 SB 1383 Implementation Record

Value Proposition SaaS: Software as a Service

 Unlimited Users
 Unlimited Storage
 User Training
 24/7 Knowledge Base
 M-F, 9-5 PST Support
 SB 1383 Implementation Record

Annual Subscription Fee Includes:

Add-On Tools Available: Make High-Level Customizations Easy































ZWM Member Agency Contact List for Recyclist Software

Jurisdiction Primary Contact Title Email Secondary Contact Title Email Primary Contact Hauler Email Secondary Contact Email

ZWM Members

Belvedere Robert Zadnik Town Manager rzadnik@cityofbelvedere.org Helga Cotter Director Admin hcotter@cityofbelvedere.org Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
Corte Madera Lorena Barrera Administrative Analyst lbarrera@tcmmail.org Todd Cusimano CM tcusimano@tcmmail.org Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
Fairfax Heather Abrams Town Manager habrams@townoffairfax.org TBD n/a n/a Jennifer Grenier Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary Justin Wilcock justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
Larkspur Alison Foulis City Clerk afoulis@cityoflarkspur.org Dan Schwarz CM dschwarz@cityoflarkspur.org Jennifer Grenier Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary Justin Wilcock justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
Mill Valley Danielle Staude Sustainability PM dstaude@cityofmillvalley.org not provided n/a n/a Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
Novato SD Dee Johnson ZW & HHW PM palomadee@gmail.com Sandeep Karkal GM SandeepK@novatosan.com Celia Furber cfurber@recology.com TBD
Ross Richard Simonitch PW Director/Town Engineer rsimonitch@townofross.org Matthew Weintraub Planning & Building mweintraub@townofross.org.  Jennifer Grenier Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary Justin Wilcock justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
San Anselmo Maribel De La Cruz Assistant Engineer  mdelacruz@townofsananselmo.org not provided n/a n/a Jennifer Grenier Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary Justin Wilcock justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
San Rafael Cory Bytof Sustainability PM cory.bytof@cityofsanrafael.org Cristine Alilovich Assistant CM cristine.alilovich@cityofsanrafael.org Jennifer Grenier Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary Justin Wilcock justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
Sausalito Ali Iqbal Assistant Planner aiqbal@sausalito.gov Andrew Davidson Senior Civil Engineer adavidson@sausalito.gov Greg Christie gchristie@baycitiesrefuse.comKim Christie kchristie@baycitiesrefuse.com
Tiburon David O. Eshoo Engineer deshoo@townoftiburon.org Patrick Kerslake Superintendent of PW pkerslake@townoftiburon.org Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
County of Marin Steve Devine Program Manager sdevine@marincounty.org Andrew Shelton WM Specialist ashelton@countyofmarin.org All four haulers All four haulers

Special Districts that 
Franchise Solid Waste 
Collection

TCSD Sarah Mehtar Finance & Programs Manager smehtar@tamcsd.org TBD same same same same
Strawberry SD Nancy Shapiro GM gm@strawberryrec.org Loren Griswold Supervisor supervisor@strawberryrec.org Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
Alto SD Bill Hansell District Manager manager@altosanitarydistrict.org not provided n/a n/a Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
MCCSD Juanita Edwards Acting Manager jedwards@marincitycsd.com Florence Williams Receptionist Fwilliams@marincitycsd.com Greg Christie gchristie@baycitiesrefuse.comKim Christie kchristie@baycitiesrefuse.com
LGVSD Dale McDonald Admin Manager dmcdonald@lgvsd.org Sahar Golshani Env Services Director sgolshani@lgvsd.org Jennifer Grenier Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary Justin Wilcock justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
Homestead Valley SD Bonner Beuhler Manager manager@homesteadvalleysd.org Rick Montalvan Secretary montalvanent@comcast.net Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 
BCPUD Jennifer Blackman Manager jblackman@bcpud.org Belle Wood Assistant bwood@bcpud.org Celia Furber cfurber@recology.com TBD
Stinson Beach Ed Shmidt GM ed@stinson-beach-cwd.dst.ca.us not provided n/a n/a Celia Furber cfurber@recology.com TBD
Almonte Shonn Dougherty not provided manager@almontesd.org Dave Haflich not provided manager@almontesd.org Dave Biggio dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.comGene Della Zoppa gene@millvalleyrefuse.com 

F:\Waste\JPA\Recyclist\[Recyclist MA Contact list.xlsx]Contacts

mailto:rzadnik@cityofbelvedere.org
mailto:hcotter@cityofbelvedere.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:lbarrera@tcmmail.org
mailto:tcusimano@tcmmail.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:habrams@townoffairfax.org
mailto:Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary.com
mailto:justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
mailto:afoulis@cityoflarkspur.org
mailto:dschwarz@cityoflarkspur.org
mailto:Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary.com
mailto:justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
mailto:dstaude@cityofmillvalley.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:palomadee@gmail.com
mailto:SandeepK@novatosan.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Frecology.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CCPoldino%40marincounty.org%7C7e31238c44b94cf13e3408d9be75c40f%7Cd272712e54ee458485b3934c194eeb6d%7C0%7C0%7C637750235276463622%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=k6%2BYQ7qN5H53Oh3ZVYC9ePtWABH6XGEpQVXWjZaxM2s%3D&reserved=0
mailto:rsimonitch@townofross.org
mailto:mweintraub@townofross.org
mailto:Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary.com
mailto:justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
mailto:mdelacruz@townofsananselmo.org
mailto:Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary.com
mailto:justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
mailto:cory.bytof@cityofsanrafael.org
mailto:cristine.alilovich@cityofsanrafael.org
mailto:Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary.com
mailto:justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
mailto:adavidson@sausalito.gov
mailto:gchristie@baycitiesrefuse.com
mailto:kchristie@baycitiesrefuse.com
mailto:deshoo@townoftiburon.org
mailto:pkerslake@townoftiburon.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:sdevine@marincounty.org
mailto:ashelton@countyofmarin.org
mailto:smehtar@tamcsd.org
mailto:gm@strawberryrec.org
mailto:supervisor@strawberryrec.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:manager@altosanitarydistrict.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:jedwards@marincitycsd.com
mailto:Fwilliams@marincitycsd.com
mailto:gchristie@baycitiesrefuse.com
mailto:kchristie@baycitiesrefuse.com
mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org
mailto:sgolshani@lgvsd.org
mailto:Jennifer.Grenier@marinsanitary.com
mailto:justin.wilcock@MarinSanitary.com
mailto:manager@homesteadvalleysd.org
mailto:montalvanent@comcast.net
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:jblackman@bcpud.org
mailto:bwood@bcpud.org
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Frecology.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CCPoldino%40marincounty.org%7C7e31238c44b94cf13e3408d9be75c40f%7Cd272712e54ee458485b3934c194eeb6d%7C0%7C0%7C637750235276463622%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=k6%2BYQ7qN5H53Oh3ZVYC9ePtWABH6XGEpQVXWjZaxM2s%3D&reserved=0
mailto:ed@stinson-beach-cwd.dst.ca.us
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Frecology.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CCPoldino%40marincounty.org%7C7e31238c44b94cf13e3408d9be75c40f%7Cd272712e54ee458485b3934c194eeb6d%7C0%7C0%7C637750235276463622%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=k6%2BYQ7qN5H53Oh3ZVYC9ePtWABH6XGEpQVXWjZaxM2s%3D&reserved=0
mailto:manager@almontesd.org
mailto:manager@almontesd.org
mailto:dbiggio@millvalleyrefuse.com
mailto:gene@millvalleyrefuse.com


6 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Berenice Davidson, Interim Executive Director 
 
Re: Update on Executive Director Recruitment and Other Matters 
 
1). Working with a Human Resources consultant, staff recommends the 
County of Marin Job Classification Planning Manager to act as the full 
time Zero Waste Marin Executive Director.   
2). The City of San Rafael has provided the attached notice that it seeks 
to terminate its roll providing oversight services of the Household 
Hazardous Waste operation – which it provides via a contract with the 
Marin Resource Recovery Association (a sister company of Marin 
Sanitary Service).   
 
Recommendations 
Adopt a motion providing direction to Staff on the recruitment of a full 
time Executive Director using the County’s Planning Manager 
classification. 
 
Attachments: 
1. County of Marin Principal Planner classification. 
2. City of San Rafael Household Hazardous Waste oversight 

termination letter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Board Chair:  Please confirm the vote on this item by reading the following items out 
loud after the vote. 
 
 
Motion:       Second:       
 
Ayes:             
   
              
 
Noes:              
 
              
 
Abstentions:             
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 220519\Item 6 - Update on Executive Director Recruitment and Other 
Matters.docx 

5/15/2022 12:56 PM 



5/13/22, 3:47 PM County of Marin - Class Specification Bulletin

https://agency.governmentjobs.com/marincounty/default.cfm?action=specbulletin&ClassSpecID=1203806&headerfooter=0 1/4

Planning Manager
 

Bargaining Unit: MCMEA

Class Code:
0687

COUNTY OF MARIN 
Established Date: Feb 13, 1990 
Revision Date: Sep 1, 2013

SALARY RANGE

$58.78 - $71.44 Hourly
$4,702.40 - $5,715.20 Biweekly

$10,188.53 - $12,382.93 Monthly
$122,262.40 - $148,595.20 Annually

DEFINITION:

Functional Titles
Chief of Planning Acquisition
Community Development Manager
Current Planning Manager
Environmental Planning Manager
Long Range Planning Manager

Under general direction, manages, organizes and coordinates the programs and operations of
a major planning area; and performs related work as assigned.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS:

This mid-management class is responsible for the overall management and program
outcomes of planning sections or programs. Incumbents exercise considerable judgment in
making programmatic and operational decisions within the department's strategic and
regulatory framework and provide direct and/or indirect management of staff. 

 
The class is distinguished from the Principal Planner by its management of multiple sections
or specialized programs requiring coordination of inter-jurisdictional projects or compliance
with complex layers of regulations from multiple agencies. The class also works with greater
independence in addressing and resolving major policy issues and personnel matters within
the section or program. It is further distinguished from assistant department heads by the
latter's responsibility for providing leadership and strategic direction for multiple divisions.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES (ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY):



5/13/22, 3:47 PM County of Marin - Class Specification Bulletin

https://agency.governmentjobs.com/marincounty/default.cfm?action=specbulletin&ClassSpecID=1203806&headerfooter=0 2/4

Manages operations of a functional area including developing, implementing and
recommending changes in goals and objectives; setting priorities; deciding workflow
systems, processes, procedures, and forms to implement programs and facilitate
operations; analyzing and recommending adjustments to organizational structure and
staffing patterns; and ensuring administration of all appropriate regulations.
Selects and develops staff; plans, reviews and evaluates work; initiates and
recommends disciplinary and other personnel actions; and oversees the work of
contractors.
Collaborates with other managers in the development and implementation of division
and department goals, objectives and performance standards and measures.
Recommends and implements policies and procedures.
Provides input into and monitors section or program budget. Determines financial
needs, assesses potential funding sources, and oversees and participates in pursuing
and managing grants.
Interprets complex regulations and establishes policies and systems to ensure
compliance.
Coordinates activities with other County departments, and representatives of county,
local, regional, state and federal agencies.
Represents the department before Commissions, the Board of Supervisors, other
advisory bodies, governmental agencies, and community organizations and interest
groups.
Presents or supervises the presentation of reports and studies. Advises executive
management regarding the status of assigned projects and programs. Conducts
studies and prepares written reports on special assignments for executive
management, Commissions and the Board of Supervisors.

Long Range Planning and Current Planning
Prepares and implements County policies, programs, ordinances and other regulations
related to property development and land use.
Establishes priorities and objectives for and manages the daily administration,
enforcement and maintenance of all zoning and subdivision regulations.
Coordinates and attends Planning Commission and inter-jurisdictional and other
special purpose planning agency meetings.

Housing and Community Development Programs
Evaluates proposed projects, recommends priorities for the expenditure of public funds,
makes decisions regarding implementation of adopted program objectives, and assures
that all requirements of funding sources are met.
Develops the annual Statement of Community Development Objectives and Projected
Use of Funds
Prepares and administers contracts with program sub-grantees. Advises and
collaborates with sub-grantees.
Facilitates housing and community development activities in Marin County.

Environmental Planning
Coordinates all phases of environmental review for County projects pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the State CEQA Guidelines, and the
County's Environmental Impact Review Guidelines.
Prepares and administers contracts for the preparation of environmental impact
documents.
Prepares, reviews and makes determinations and recommendations on environmental
impact reports, initial studies, negative declarations, and categorical exemptions.

Planning and Acquisition
Ensures protection of real property interests through identification and resolution of
encroachments, and monitoring of conservation easements.
Oversees development and implementation of comprehensive, high level plans related
to land and easement acquisition, visitor use, trails, and other open space facilities and
improvements.



5/13/22, 3:47 PM County of Marin - Class Specification Bulletin

https://agency.governmentjobs.com/marincounty/default.cfm?action=specbulletin&ClassSpecID=1203806&headerfooter=0 3/4

Ensures timely review and monitoring of externally generated plans (general plans,
specific plans, master plans, etc.) affecting county's open space, park and trail
interests.
Oversees fulfillment of environmental review and permitting requirements for all open
space and park acquisition, maintenance, renovation and improvement projects.
Oversees all aspects of individual land and easement acquisitions, including pre-
acquisition assessments, coordination of real estate activities, funding, and initial post
acquisition planning related to public use.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS &
LICENSES:

Any combination of education and experience that provides the knowledge and abilities listed.
Typically, equivalent to graduation from a college or university with a major in City, Regional or
Environmental Planning, Urban Studies, Economics, Social Policy, Geography, Natural
Resource Management or a closely related field and four years of professional experience,
three of which must of have been performing work related to the assignment and one of which
must have included supervisory experience equivalent to the level of Principal Planner. 

 
Note: Graduate level coursework in a discipline related to the work may substitute for up to a
year of the non-lead/supervisory experience requirement at the rate of three semester units
for one month of experience. A master's degree in a discipline related to the assignment is
highly desirable.

KNOWLEDGE OF:

Principles, practices, and trends in urban and regional planning including physical,
social and economic factors involved.
Applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations and
policies.
Principles and practices of public administration as they apply to effective management
of personnel, fiscal resources, program implementation, and legislative developments
affecting assigned programs.
Programs, techniques, and federal, state, and local funding sources related to assigned
programs.
Principles of economics, governmental finance, sociology, community needs, and
objectives as they relate to planning for assigned programs.
Depending upon assignment, principles of environmental review laws and regulations,
including the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

ABILITY TO:



5/13/22, 3:47 PM County of Marin - Class Specification Bulletin

https://agency.governmentjobs.com/marincounty/default.cfm?action=specbulletin&ClassSpecID=1203806&headerfooter=0 4/4

Plan and coordinate complex programs, including implementing policies and applicable
regulations related to assignment.
Develop program plans and anticipate alternatives for program adjustments.
Apply budgeting and financial analysis techniques.
Interpret, apply and explain all applicable laws and ordinances in making decisions
related to assignment.
Plan, assign, manage, review and evaluate the work of staff.
Prepare and present staff reports and other necessary documents to appropriate
boards, groups and/or committees.
Work within political decision-making processes.
Represent the County and make major presentations to a wide variety of audiences.



 
 

 
 

Kate Colin, Mayor • Rachel Kertz, Vice Mayor • Maribeth Bushey, Councilmember • Eli Hill, Councilmember • Maika Llorens Gulati, Councilmember 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
February 17, 2022 

Berenice Davidson 
Executive Director 
Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management JPA 
3501 Civic Center Drive 
San Rafael, CA 94903 

Dear Director Davidson, 

On July 1, 1996 the City of San Rafael and the Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste 
Management Joint Powers Authority (JPA) entered into a Hazardous Waste Collection Program 
Agreement. The agreement was amended on January 26, 2012 and again on May 18, 2020. 
The most recent amendment extended the agreement to June 30, 2021 with automatic yearly 
renewals unless either party provides written notice of its desire to not automatically renew.  

The agreement between both parties includes payment to the City to cover items including but 
not limited to, the operational cost for collection, storage, treatment, and disposal of household 
hazardous waste (HHW) and city administrative cost.  With this funding, the City hired and 
employed an Environmental Management Coordinator who oversaw the HHW program. The 
current employee, David Catalinotto submitted his resignation and departed the City effective 
January 21, 2022. Since the resignation, Deputy Fire Chief, Robert Sinnott and Senior 
Management Analyst, Thomas Wong have taken over the duties and responsibilities on behalf 
of the City.  

With consideration to David’s departure and reorganization within the San Rafael Fire 
Department, the City is officially requesting to terminate the agreement and return all duties, 
fiscal and administrative, back to the JPA. In addition, all funds maintained by the City on behalf 
of the JPA and related to the operation of the HHW program will be returned. Per the 
agreement, this letter shall serve notice of this request from the City of San Rafael. We hope to 
transition by June 30, 2022 so that all changes can be effective starting fiscal year 2022 - 2023.  

We thank you for the opportunity to participate in this program and are willing to meet and 
develop a transition plan that will allow for continuity of service. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Cristine Alilovich 
Assistant City Manager 
 
  



7 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon

 
 
Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Staff 
 
Re: This Item Removed from the Agenda 
 
This item has been removed from the Agenda. 
 
 

 
F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Agenda Items\JPA 220519\Item 7 - Pulled.docx 5/16/2022 9:10 AM 



 
Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA 94913 

Phone: 415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 
 

 

 

8 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Belvedere  

Corte Madera 

County of Marin 

Fairfax 

Larkspur 

Mill Valley 

Novato 

Ross 

San Anselmo 

San Rafael 

Sausalito 

Tiburon 

Date: May 19, 2022 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Steve Devine, Program Manager 
 
Re: FY 22-23 JPA Draft, Proposed Budget and Related Hauler/Facility 

Assessments 
 
 
Following and attached is the draft, proposed Marin County Hazardous 
and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority FY 22-23 Budget 
(Attachment 1) and associated hauler/facility fee Assessments. This 
draft budget reflects an overall ~ 7% increase in Assessments – on the 
landfill, transfer station and the five haulers operating in the County.  
That said, due to an increase in the proportional share of self-haul 
disposal compared to franchised waste – most of this increase would be 
borne by the Redwood Landfill and Marin Resource Recovery “indoor 
dump” and most haulers would see reduced Assessments. 
 
Based on data reported to the JPA by the five waste haulers – the 
proposed Assessment changes would translate into between a 2-3 cent 
decrease or increase in a typical ~ $45/month “garbage bill.”  The 
variation in the impact of the Assessments at the haulers is due to 
factors including the balance between commercial and residential 
accounts, changes in disposal tonnage over time and cost-of-service 
variations between communities. 
 
Background 
The vast majority of expense residents and business have in their 
“garbage bill” is collection labor and vehicle cost emptying the three 
garbage, compost and recycling containers.  Those costs are regulated 
by the individual Cities, Towns, County or special districts with Franchise 
oversight.  Please recall that the JPA is not funded by County, City 
or Town general funds or any sort of assessment on the Member 
Agencies.  The JPA is funded by lump-sum assessments on the five 
waste haulers noted above, and the following solid waste facilities: 
Redwood Landfill in Novato, Marin Resource Recovery Center, and 
Marin Sanitary Transfer Station. In turn, all these operators pass along 
these costs to their customers as they see fit.   
 



 

 

 
Page 2 of 14 

 
 

To better understand the context of JPA rate setting, each year the JPA polls the five 
local haulers to provide an answer to the question: What is the Magnitude of the JPA 
Revenue Requirement as it Translates to Your Typical Residential Customer?  As 
noted in the table below, the total costs for the services provided by this Agency, 
in total, equates to ~1% to ~ 2% of the total typical residential bill . 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The methodology to calculate the assessments generating the JPA’s revenue requirement 
is prescribed in the 1996 JPA Agreement.  That methodology utilizes the local hauler and 
local waste facility disposal figures as the means to allocate the revenue requirement 
(Assessments).  The tonnage allocation is reset every two years based on recent actuals.  
For this rate setting cycle, the Assessments are calculated using the most recently available 
2021 data – and those figures will be used again next year until the next tonnage reset.  
The disposal data was relatively consistent with expected increases tracking economic 
growth – but with larger growth in “self-haul” at the Redwood Landfill in Novato and Marin 
Resource “indoor dump” transfer station in San Rafael. 
 
The following two tables summarize the more significant, proposed, year-over-year 
budget changes: 
 

Proposed Increases 
New edible food donation support per Zero Waste 
Plan Update 

$180,000 

New full time Executive Director – using County 
Planning Manager classification 

$282,020 

Insurance for commencing being the generator of 
record of the hazardous waste and involvement as the 
stewards of the Marin HHW Program 

$100,000 

Zero Waste Schools Program incremental expansion 
and outsourcing 

$81,700 

¼ of year of a new Waste Management Specialist 
overseeing the household hazardous waste program 

$39,129 

Combining 10+ year old Zero Waste Grant Program 
with 1 year old Compliance Reimbursement Fund 

No cost impact but will yield 
administrative efficiencies 
and improved oversight. 

  

Hauler Average 
Monthly Residential Rate 

JPA 
Portion 

% of Total 
Monthly Bill 

Bay Cities Refuse  $40.52 .62¢ 1.5% 
Marin Sanitary Service $46.66 .73¢ 1.6% 
Mill Valley Refuse  $52.65 .96¢ 1.8% 
Recology $39.95 .87¢ 2.1% 
Tamalpais CSD $71.02 .73¢ 1.0% 



 

 

 
Page 3 of 14 

 
 

Proposed Reductions 
One time organizational consulting - $50,000  
SB 1383 consulting - $50,000 

 
The JPA Budget is Organized into Three Funds: 
The three Funds used to organize the JPA’s finances are the Zero Waste Fund, the 
State Reporting Fund and the Household Hazardous Waste Fund. 
 
1.  Zero Waste Fund 

(JPA Section 6.2) Optional Member Participation 
Novato does not participate in this program. 
 

2.  State Reporting and Requirements Fund 
(JPA Section 6.1) All Members Participate 
 

3.  Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Fund 
(JPA Section 6.2) Optional Member Participation 
Novato does not participate in this program, as it operates its own household 
hazardous waste collection program. 

 
FUND OVERVIEW 

 
Fund Center FY 21-22 

Expense Budget 
FY 22-23 Proposed 

Expense Budget 
1.  Zero Waste $1,275,337 $1,358,738 
2.  State Reporting $1,012,713 $1,390,756 
3.  Hazardous Waste $2,572,807 $2,848,620 

 

Zero Waste
24%

State 
Reporting

25%

Hazardous 
Waste 51%

FY 22/23 Proposed Expenditures by Fund - % of Total



 

 

 
Page 4 of 14 

 
 

A summary of activities in each of these three categories is summarized below. 
 
 
1. ZERO WASTE FUND ACTIVITIES 
 
Ongoing and proposed Zero Waste activities account for 24% of proposed JPA 
expenditures and include: 
 
• The  Construction  and  Demolition  Program  would  continue  to  help educate and 

support Member Agencies’ building inspectors and the public with implementation of 
Construction & Demolition Programs as required by Cal Green and to help Marin 
reach its zero waste goals, and parent with the Marin Builder’s Association. 

 
• The  Home  Composting  Program  provides  training  to  the  community  promoting 

waste reduction, water conservation and the greenhouse gas benefits of home 
composting. 

 
• Member   Agency   &   Public   

Support will continue to support  
increased  community requests 
for zero waste information, 
presentations, reusable versus 
single use items, community 
presentations, and supplying the 
public with outreach materials, 
etc. 

 

 

 
• Direct outreach to Marin citizens through various media sources including television, 

Internet, in-person consultations, presentations to businesses, business groups, 
HOAs     and     farmers     markets.  During COVID, a focus has been on online 
outreach.  The JPA’s campaigns recently have focused on eliminating waste at the 
source by providing specific suggestions such as using reusable coffee mugs, 
rechargeable batteries and single use water alternatives. 

 
 
An example of the currently running Chose Reusables Every Time (Spring ’22) 
Campaign can be seen here: https://youtu.be/EO2AAgFA-8g\, along with a sample from 
the Holiday 2021 Zero Waste Gift Giving campaign: 

https://youtu.be/EO2AAgFA-8g/


 

 

 
Page 5 of 14 

 
 

https://www.facebook.com/ZeroWasteMarin/videos/938891407009990. 
 
This budget category also includes work on maintaining and updating 
www.zerowastemarin.org and the associated recycling guide database. 
 

 
 

 
 

https://www.facebook.com/ZeroWasteMarin/videos/938891407009990
http://www.zerowastemarin.org/


 

 

 
Page 6 of 14 

 
 

 
• The   Zero   Waste   Schools   Program   maintains thirty 

three schools in the program and aims to add three more in FY 
22-22.  There is currently a waiting list of ~ ten schools 
interested in joining the program.  This program is highly 
regarded by the education community, has top-level buy in 
from the Marin County Office of Education and is foundational 
to providing long-term movement towards zero waste in Marin.  
A growing and added benefit of this program is the reality that 
many schools are used not just during “school 
hours” but also serve as community parks,  
recreation centers and more.  Accordingly, we 
are seeing increased use of the infrastructure 
invested at school sites (compost and recycling 
bins) at weekend sporting events, picnickers, 
etc. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Proud student showing off a new "waste station" at her school. 



 

 

 
Page 7 of 14 

 
 

The April 16, 2022 Marin Independent Journal featured a front page story with accolades 
on the Zero Waste Schools Program – which is spearheaded by Senior Planner Casey 
Poldino. 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Page 8 of 14 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other general zero waste outreach includes fielding recycling, composting and waste 
diversion questions from the community, supporting City and Town newsletter articles, 
etc.  This 
outreach often 
includes 
working closely 
with each of 
the five waste 
haulers that 
operate in the 
County – as 
seen here with 
Waste 
Management 
Specialist 
Andrew 
Shelton 
working with 
Mill Valley 
Refuse 
Service. 
  

Reusables, not just recycling and composting are promoted in the Zero Waste 
Schools Program.  Who knew that reusable water bottles could be so cool? 

  



 

 

 
Page 9 of 14 

 
 

2. “STATE” FUND PROGRAMS 
 
Proposed State Program expenditures for FY 22-23 account for 
25% of JPA expenditures.  A primary activity in this fund center 
has been disposal tracking, mandatory regional reporting for the 
Electronic Annual Report, conducting the annual, agency Audit 
and other administrative requirements of public agencies. 
 
• Organizational Assessment/Zero Waste Plan Update 
 
While this Agency was well suited to address the requirements of California’s, 1989 AB 
939 – which required 50% waste diversion from landfill – there are substantial and 
numerous additional expectations from the community and State that have evolved in 30+ 
years and this Agency needs to keep up.  Accordingly, in late 2019, the JPA conducted 
an RFP to identify and retain a contractor to shepherd a “Zero Waste Plan Update and 
Organizational Assessment.”  A Board Organizational Assessment Subcommittee 
(Chair Toy, Alilovich, Donnery, and Hymel/Eilerman) selected R3 Consulting Group Inc. 
(and a team of subcontractors) to work on the project.  The Covid-19 pandemic, multiple 
Interim Executive Directors and other challenges slowed the project, but the Board 
adopted a Zero Waste Plan Update in August 2021. 
 
The first critical step in implementing actions identified in the Board’s updated Zero Waste 
Plan is the proposed hiring of a full time Executive Director – and that matter is addressed 
in another Agenda Item on your meeting today.  The budget reflects the addition of a full-
time Executive Director utilizing the County’s existing Planning Manager classification. 
 
• Proposed Combining of the Historical Zero Waste Grant Program and Last 

Year’s New Compliance Reimbursement Fund into a new “Reimbursable 
Compliance Program.” 

 
The draft, proposed FY 22-23 budget includes combining the now 10+ year old Zero 
Waste Grant Program ($350,000) with last year’s new, $317,708 “Compliance 
Reimbursement Fund” into a combined Reimbursable Compliance Program.  This 
Program would be funded in this State Compliance Fund, and as such would be 
available to all the Member Agencies, the Special Districts that franchise solid waste, 
and Novato (which might need to provide direction on if the recipient of funds would be 
the Sanitary District and/or City).  This program would provide fiscal support to help 
each of the 21 Franchising Entities in Marin County with customized programs and 
projects most appropriate for their particular community – including needs related to SB 
1383 (California’s Short Lived Climate Pollutant Law).   
 
Mechanically, it is proposed that these funds would be paid upon receipt of an invoice 
from the subject public agency with a simple demonstration that they conducted 
compliance work associated with SB 1383, AB 1826, AB 341 and AB 827.  This work, 



 

 

 
Page 10 of 14 

 
 

for example, typically ranges from costs for a consultant advising on updating waste 
ordinances, implementing food waste reduction policies, developing procedures for 
state required route auditing, developing procedures for business auditing, training staff 
on reporting software, etc.  JPA staff will update and develop procedures for this new 
program which would include having the reimbursements come before the JPA Board 
for review and approval ~ May – allowing for the maximum amount of time for work to 
be conducted by each public agency franchising entity during the Fiscal Year. 
 
This RCP would support the individualized needs of Marin’s many unique communities.  
Recent projects undertaken in Marin communities via this historical Zero Waste Grant 
Program have included installation of refillable water bottle stations, technical assistance 
to businesses to expand edible food donation, composting and recycling, chippers for 
organic debris, expanded use of reusables at festivals – and more. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To facilitate individual jurisdiction reporting to the CalRecycle State Agency on SB 1383 
and other reporting – the proposed budget includes continued funding for licensing of 
the “Recyclist” which is a cloud-based software system facilitating complex data 
collection and organization for jurisdiction level compliance reporting.  
 
This past year, Staff has been working diligently with Recyclist to facilitate the initial 
data uploads of each of the 21 franchising entities service data into the program 
trackers working with the four private waste haulers (Bay Cities Refuse Service, Marin 
Sanitary Service, Mill Valley Refuse Service and Recology Sonoma Marin) along with 
the one public agency hauler – Tamalpais Community Services District. 

The counter showing the number of bottles saved 
is a crowd favorite. 

Indoor waste stations 

https://recyclist.co/tracker/


 

 

 
Page 11 of 14 

 
 

 
User training for the 21 public agencies is scheduled for May 24th for the primary and 
secondary system users.  Additional training, specific to the five waste haulers, will 
occur later that week.  These events will be recorded and made available for those that 
cannot make the scheduled trainings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
While Recyclist will be an excellent tool in helping jurisdictions organize data, facilitate 
collection of data from their particular hauler in all in formats that will ease State reporting 
– it needs to be noted that it is still necessary for each jurisdiction to manually key in 
reporting data to the State’s system – as CalRecycle is not providing an electronic 
reporting gateway.   
 
CalRecyle conducted one webinar to date which only showed some wireframe intention 
of how data might be input into an SB 1383 reporting portal – but the Agency has not 
released any compendium of what all will be asked. CalRecycle has announced  
webinars in June 2022 that are advertised to discuss SB 1383 reporting into an updated 
“Electronic Annual Report.”  This description is confusing as Recyclist, consultants we 
work with, and Staff are under that understanding that a typical “Electronic Annual 
Report/EAR” is due in August.  And, we expect that in October each “reporting 
jurisdiction” in the State will need to submit its SB 1383 “Jurisdiction Annual Report/JAR” 
in October.  We hope to get some clarity on all this moving forward.   
3.  HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE (HHW) FUND ACTIVITES 



 

 

 
Page 12 of 14 

 
 

 
The proposed HHW Program expenditures for FY 22-23 account for 51% of total JPA 
expenditures.  The program collects, and diverts from landfill, over 1.5 million pounds of 
material each year.  The JPA retains HHW services for the community via a contract with 
the City of San Rafael Fire 
Department which in turn 
contracts with Marin 
Resource Recovery 
Association (MRRA).  The 
Fire Department also 
conducts “Toxic Away Days” 
for remote areas of West 
Marin. MRRA operates the 
HHW facility at 565 Jacoby 
Street in San Rafael. 
Novato’s hazardous waste 
services are provided by the 
Novato Sanitary District.  
Items of note and continued 
operation in this Fund 
include: 

 
•  The proposed Marin HHW Facility Budget provided by the City of San Rafael Fire 

Department (under contract to this JPA to oversee the Facility) has a proposed 
~$70,000 increase for waste handling.  It should be noted that as the waste stream 
continues to evolve, it is generally becoming more hazardous and more toxic.  For 
example, increased use of lithium batteries is a huge hazard that needs to be 
managed and requires additional attention.  

 
• The City of San Rafael Fire Department has provided notice it will transition out of its 

roll overseeing the Household Hazardous Waste Facility. The JPA will need to 
negotiate a replacement agreement with the Marin Resource Recovery Association, 
and maybe also a hazardous waste collection vendor for the “Toxics Away Days” 
held in West Marin – to serve those more remote communities not near the San 
Rafael facility.  Accordingly, there are two new costs items in the proposed budget: 

 
o A $100,000 allocation for insurance as the JPA will need to become the 

generator of record for the waste and assume EPA based, cradle to grave 
responsibility along with other liability; and, 

o $39,129 for addition of a Waste Management Specialist in the 4th quarter of 
the fiscal year to commence program oversight and assistance. 

 
 
• The JPA operates, via a subcontractor, a popular Bulb and Battery Drop-off 

Unloading hazmat at Marin HHW Facility. 



 

 

 
Page 13 of 14 

 
 

program that provides ten convenient collection locations for the community to recycle 
bulbs and batteries that can contain mercury and other heavy metals.   
 

 
 
• The JPA will continue administration of the State of 

California Oil Payment Program for Marin (less 
Novato). This project provides for promotion of 
proper motor oil and filter handling, bilingual 
outreach, certification of  oil recycling centers in the 
County, and bilge pad absorbent distribution and 
collection at  marinas.   

 
This program includes a 
significant Spanish language 
outreach component and 
leveraging of grant funds to 
also help promote general 
zero waste outreach and 
hazardous waste education.  
Storm drain markers are also 
provided to the Member Agencies. 

 
• The JPA helps funds the Sharps Collection Program operated by the County’s 

Environmental Health Division.  Environmental Health operates ~ 21 sharps (needles 
and lancets) sites in the County. This program is important for numerous reasons, 
but in particular it helps protect our partners in solid waste collection and processing. 

 

New bilge pad dispenser and used receptacle. 

Storm Drain Markers 



 

 

 
Page 14 of 14 

 
 

We continue to monitor the State’s implementation of SB 212 – a rare Extended Produce 
Responsibility bill that, when implemented, will require manufacturers to take on the cost 
of the proper handling of these needles and sharps. Hopefully, this program will come 
online so that the JPA can eliminate this local expense. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Motion providing specific direction to Staff on changes to the Draft, Proposed 
FY 22-23 Budget that will come before the Full Board for your review and approval at 
your June 16, 2022 Board Meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Draft FY 22-23 Budget by Fund 
2. City of San Rafael Fire Proposed FY 22-23 Household Hazardous Waste Facility 

Budget 

Chair: Please confirm the vote by reading the following items out loud after the vote. 

 

Motion:       Second:       

 

Ayes:              

              

Noes:              

              

Abstentions:             

f:\waste\jpa\jpa agenda items\jpa 220519\item 8 - draft fy 23-23 budget and assessments v5.docx 
5/16/2022 9:12 AM 



Item 8. Attachment 1

A B C D E F G H

2021 DISPOSAL (tons) TOTAL FY 21/22 Zero Waste State Reporting HHW Total
Year over Year 

Change
MSW Haulers MSW & Debris Self-Haul TONS Assessments
Bay Cities Refuse 6,150 N/A 6,150 $98,355 $18,240 $26,145 $44,091 $88,477 ($9,878)
Marin Sanitary Service (MSS) 48,203 N/A 48,203 $699,372 $142,965 $204,922 $345,584 $693,471 ($5,901)
Mill Valley Refuse 20,396 N/A 20,396 $309,760 $60,493 $86,708 $146,226 $293,426 ($16,334)
Recology Novato Disposal 27,009 N/A 27,009 $59,145 $0 $114,821 $0 $114,821 $55,676
Recology Sonoma Marin 5,646 N/A 5,646 $94,042 $16,745 $24,002 $40,478 $81,226 ($12,816)
Tam. CSD 1,631 N/A 1,631 $25,419 $4,837 $6,934 $11,693 $23,464 ($1,955)
Total Franchised Haulers 109,035 N/A 109,035 $1,286,093 $243,281 $463,532 $588,072 $1,294,885 

Landfills
Redwood N/A 142,999 142,999 $1,703,905 $424,121 $607,920 $1,025,208 $2,057,250 $353,345
Redwood Landfill N/A 142,999 142,999 $1,703,905 $424,121 $607,920 $1,025,208 $2,057,250 

Transfer Stations
Marin Resource Recovery Center 105,048 105,048 $1,549,569 $311,562 $446,582 $753,125 $1,511,269 ($38,300)
Marin Sanitary Service Transfer Station 3,888 3,888 $45,835 $11,531 $16,529 $27,874 $55,935 $10,100
Total Transfer Stations 108,936 108,936 $1,595,404 $323,094 $463,111 $780,999 $1,567,204 

TOTALS 109,035 251,935 360,970 $4,585,402 $990,496 $1,534,563 $2,394,279 $4,919,338 7.3%

                                          JPA Hauler, Landfill & Transfer Station Assessments

FY 22/23

FY 22/23

F:\Waste\JPA\Budget\FY 22-23\FY 22-23 DRAFT  Budget v12.xlsxFees 22-23 Page: 1 of 5
Item 8. Attachment 1

5/15/2022 8:30 PM



Item 8. Attachment 1

Expenses 1,358,738$   1,390,756$                 2,848,620$      5,598,114$        
Contingency 135,874$      139,076$                    284,862$         559,811$           
Revenue Requirement 1,494,611$   1,529,832$                 3,133,482$      6,157,926$        

Interest 1,000$          500$                           2,000$             3,500$              
State Oil Payment 65,000$           65,000$            
Assessments 990,496$      1,534,563$                 2,394,279$      4,919,338$        
Carry Over 503,116$      (5,231)$                       672,203$         1,170,087$        
Revenue 1,494,611$   1,529,832$                 3,133,482$      6,157,926$        

Zero Waste 
Fund

State Reporting Fund HHW Fund

Expenditures as Percent 
of Total Budget by Fund 24% 25% 51%

Proposed FY 22/23 Budget
Zero Waste 

Fund
State Reporting Fund HHW Fund All Funds Total

$1,358,738

$1,390,756

$2,848,620

Expenses
Zero Waste Fund

State Reporting Fund

HHW Fund

F:\Waste\JPA\Budget\FY 22-23\FY 22-23 DRAFT  Budget v12.xlsxBalancePage: 2 of 5
Item 8. Attachment 1

5/15/2022 8:30 PM



Item 8. Attachment 1

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE % CHANGE NARRATIVE

280,977$           280,977$           Salaries and Wages 511110 $452,678 171,701$               61.1% Contract staff wages and benefits.  Increase mostly new full-time Executive 
Director.

2,060$               2,060$               Legal Expense 522545 $2,060 -$                       0.0% Legal counsel.
 $            15,000 15,000$             Construction & Demolition Debris 522510 $15,000 -$                       0.0% Contract support for Construction & Demolition outreach at Members.

40,000$             40,000$             Member Agency & Community Support 522510 & 
522310

$40,000 -$                       0.0% City & Town support for kitchen compost pails, reusable produce bags, 
xmas tree recycling promotion, general outreach and education. 

15,000$             15,000$             State, Regional and Local "Wasteshed" Partnerships 522210 $15,000 -$                       0.0% California Product Stewardship Council, Californian's Against Waste, Marin 
Builder's Association, Business Chambers, BayRoc, NCRA, Youth 
Convergence, CRRA etc.  Support for Extended Producer Responsibility 
and reduced packaging.

-$                  -$                  Edible Food Donation Support 522510 & 
522310

$180,000 180,000$               
↑

Support expansion and capacity of and for edible food capture and 
redistribution, alongwith support for documentation of same without 
hampering non-profits critical mission.

10,000$             10,000$             Training, Conferences & Professional Memberships 523210 $10,000 -$                       0.0% Training, conferences & professional memberships. 
 $          298,300 298,300$           Zero Waste School Program 522510 & 

522310
$380,000 81,700$                 27.4% Waste diversion programs & education in partnership with MCOE, many 

school districts, all five haulers, custodians, parents, unions, and students.  
Main subcontractor = non profit, SEI (Strategic Energy Innovations) @ 
$220,000.  Trash Bin Cleaners Co. @ $40,000, & ZWM JPA at $120,000 for 
bins, signs, equipement, containers, eco-foodware startup.

260,000$           260,000$           Information and Outreach 522510 $260,000 -$                       0.0% Social media, print, bus shelter, and other outlets for zero waste campaigns. 
ZeroWasteMarin.org improvements.  Sample articles for Member Agencies.

350,000$           321,431$           Zero Waste Grant $0 (350,000)$              ↓ This $350K moved to the State Fund for proposed, COMBINING of Zero 
Waste Grant Program & Compliance Reimbursement Fund into new Zero 
Waste Reimbursment Program

4,000$               4,000$               Truck 561660 $4,000 -$                       0.0% Annual maintenance, insurance, amortization.

 $       1,275,337  $       1,246,768 Zero Waste Fund Expense Totals $1,358,738  $                83,401 6.5%

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE
BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$1,000 $1,000 Interest 441115 $1,000 Interest
$1,310,288 $1,310,288 Solid Waste Management 461510 $990,496 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments

$91,582 $438,595 Carry-Over N/A $503,116 Carry-over from prior fiscal year (contingency + unspent)
$1,402,870 $1,749,883 Total Revenue $1,494,611

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
Contingency Account 900010 $135,874

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

ZERO WASTE FUND
FY 22/23 (80238601) EXPENSE BUDGET

FY 22/23 (80238601) REVENUE BUDGET

F:\Waste\JPA\Budget\FY 22-23\FY 22-23 DRAFT  Budget v12.xlsxZero Waste Page: 3 of 5
Item 8. Attachment 1

5/15/2022 8:30 PM



Item 8. Attachment 1

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE % CHANGE NARRATIVE

$394,546 $394,546 Salaries and Wages 511110 $504,589 $110,043 27.9% Contract staff wages and benefits.  Increase mostly 
new, full-time Executive Director.

$15,000 $2,500 Legal Expense 522545 $15,000 $0 0.0% Legal counsel.

$19,200 $19,200 Outside Acctg & Audit Fees 522585 $19,200 $0 0.0% Financial Audit + Submittal of GCC & FTR to State 
on behalf of the JPA.

$20,000 $20,000 Insurance 521610 $20,000 $0 0.0% Insurance.
$16,941 $16,941 Rent 522925 $16,941 $0 0.0% Office space.
$1,500 $0 Training/Professional Development 523210 $1,500 $0 0.0% Training & professional development.
$618 $0 Mileage & Routine Travel 523445 $618 $0 0.0% Routine travel.

$1,200 $0 Supplies & Reproduction 522410 $1,200 $0 0.0% Reflective of annual usage.

$317,708 $255,199 Compliance Reimbursement Fund 522510 $667,708 $350,000 ↑
Now COMBINED Zero Waste Grant funds and 
Compliance Reinbursement Fund into new Zero 
Waste Reimbrusement Programn

$50,000 $0 SB 1383 Consulting Per ZW 
Planning Recommendations 522510 $0 ($50,000) N/A One time project not pursued.

$50,000 $0 Organizational Consultant to Advise 
on Implementing Recommendations 522510 $0 ($50,000) N/A One time project not pursued.

$126,000 $126,000 Recycllist SB 1383 Regional 
Reporting Software 522510 $144,000 $18,000 14.3%

Provision of data collection and organizing SAAS 
web based tool facilitating jurisdiction reporting.  
Increase due to commencing data set imports from 
haulers on behalf of 21 user jurisdictions.

$1,012,713 $834,386 State Reporting Fund Ops Total $1,390,756 $378,043 27.2%

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$500 $500 Interest 441115 $500 Interest
$716,401 $716,401 Solid Waste Management 461510 $1,534,563 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments
$397,084 $112,254 Carry-Over N/A -$5,231

$1,113,985 $829,155 Total Revenue $1,529,832

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
-$5,231 Contingency Account 900010 $139,076

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

FY 22/23 (80218601) REVENUE BUDGET

STATE REPORTING & REQUIRED
FY 22/23 (80218601) EXPENSE BUDGET

F:\Waste\JPA\Budget\FY 22-23\FY 22-23 DRAFT  Budget v12.xlsxState Reporting Page: 4 of 5
Item 8. Attachment 1

5/15/2022 8:30 PM



Item 8. Attachment 1

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
APPROVED TOTAL EST BUDGET

BUDGET EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT NAME OBJECT REQUEST VARIANCE % CHANGE NARRATIVE

$182,740 $182,740 Salaries and Wages 511110 $206,324 23,584$        12.9%
Contract staff wages and benefits.  Increase mostly new, full-time 
Executive Director + 4th quarter Waste Management Specialist for 
HHW.

$182,309 $182,309 HHW Facility Oversight 522555 $182,309 -$              0.0% San Rafael FD HHW facility oversight.
$1,847,747 $1,847,747 HHW Facility Operations 522510 $1,917,482 69,735$        3.8% HHW facility operation + West Marin HHW events. 

$0 $0 New Insurance for HHW Operations 521610 $100,000 100,000$      ↑
Likely need to obtain insurance as geneator of record for household 
hazardous waste and small quanity business generator waste for 
most of Marin County.

$41,816 $41,816 Novato HHW Pass Through 522310 $52,650 10,834$        25.9% Novato HHW fee reimbursement.

$2,732 $2,732 Legal Services 522545 $2,732 -$              0.0% Legal counsel on Haz Waste contracts and grant agreements, 
including Bulb and Battery and Marina programs. 

$164,800 $164,800 Bulb and Battery Program 522510 $164,800 -$              0.0% Fluorescent bulbs and batteries hazwaste collection.

$85,933 $85,933 Sharps & Needles Program 522310 $85,933 -$              0.0% Support for the Sharps and Needles Program via Environmental 
Health Services.

$2,508,077 $2,508,077 Operational Budget Subtotal $2,712,230 204,153$      

Oil Payment Program 
Oil Payment Program - Cycle 10 41PWPOPP10 $1,631 n/a
Oil Payment Program - Cycle 11 41PWPOPP11 $6,260 n/a

$82,000 $63,500 Oil Payment Program - Cycle 12 41PWPOPP12 $63,500 n/a
Oil Payment Program - Cycle 13 41PWPOPP13 $65,000 n/a

$82,000 $63,500 Oil Payment Program Subtotal $136,391

$2,590,077 $2,571,577 HHW Fund Total Expenses Total $2,848,620 204,153$      7.9%

FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23
APPROVED TOTAL EST REVENUE REVENUE

BUDGET REVENUE ACCOUNT NAME SOURCE REQUEST NARRATIVE

$2,000 $2,000 Interest 441115 $2,000 Interest
$65,000 $63,509 Other Aid: State 451970 $65,000 CalRecycle Funds for Used Oil Payment Program

$2,460,356 $2,460,356 Solid Waste Management 461510 $2,394,279 Hauler, Landfill, Transfer Station Assessments
$204,284 $717,915 Carry-Over N/A $672,203 Carry-over from prior fiscal year (contingency + unspent)

$2,731,640 $3,243,780 Total Revenue $3,133,482

GENERAL CONTINGENCIES
$672,203 Contingency Account 900010 $284,862

Contingency Target = 10% 10%

FY 22/23 (80228601) EXPENSE BUDGET
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE FUND

FY 22/23 (80228601) REVENUE BUDGET

F:\Waste\JPA\Budget\FY 22-23\FY 22-23 DRAFT  Budget v12.xlsxHHW Page: 5 of 5
Item 8. Attachment 1

5/15/2022 8:30 PM



 

“Our Mission…is to help” 

CITY OF SAN RAFAEL  |  1375 FIFTH AVENUE, SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA 94901 |  WWW.SRFD.ORG 

Kate Colin, Mayor  Rachel Kertz, Vice Mayor  Maribeth Bushey, Councilmember  Elias Hill, Councilmember  Maika Llorens Gulati, Councilmember 

 

 

 

 
FIRE CHIEF DARIN WHITE 

PHONE:  (415) 485-3084 

FAX:  (415) 453-1627 

April 20, 2022 

Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Marin County Department of Public Works 

1600 Los Gamos Drive, Ste. 210 

San Rafael, CA 94903 

 

RE: Fiscal Year 2022/23 Budget Proposal 

Dear Steve, 

 

Please accept this letter as the Fiscal Year 2022/23 budget proposal for the Marin Household 

Hazardous Waste (HHW) Program. The allocation amounts for the City of San Rafael (City) 

management oversight and for Marin Recycling and Resource Recovery Association (MRRRA) 

contractual services are provided herein.   

 

The HHW Program budget for the current fiscal year, FY 2021/22 was $2,029,786, which was a 

5.7% increase from the previous year. 

 

HHW Program budget proposal summary: 

For FY 2022/23, we are proposing a total HHW Program budget of $2,099,521, which is a 3.4% 

increase from the previous year’s budget and under the CPI-U for the San Francisco Bay Area 

which saw increases of 4.2%. 

The budget proposal for the City of San Rafael management oversight is $182,039. This remain 

unchanged from the year prior which reflects a change in staffing model at the City that will not 

affect the service provided.  

We are proposing a total MRRRA contractual services budget of $1,917,482. This is a 3.8% 

increase from the previous year’s budget.  

http://www.cityofsanrafael.org/DEPARTMENTS/FIRE
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/2DRPoQ920Orho76zBdCXbO9KVJBYQsIe3zhOyrpvd7b3zPbVJBYQsIe3zhOOrpsjd7bNEVohdS9NBjyctb0GQFBGKQS4ttTP-00CXiCmGXjohRTvfU02rJHb11dV_HYYCMqejhOe7tuVtdcQsIsyMqen1RSnKEyCJtdmXzfaxVZicHs3joUSyCrLOqrzP5XELfCXCOsVHkiPar0L7ntYYLrumzlJ2QFBKnM3cJapr3dp_CE8h-B3uMCjH0I8EdPzEa8yvbCQmkTS73obZ8Qg36Md40bRTvfd40KbU5xIQg0LXhrBdnUjd40cGpZkxYjh0yC0pEwjKyUrvKrJ1jy
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/2DRPoQ920Orho76zBdCXbO9KVJBYQsIe3zhOyrpvd7b3zPbVJBYQsIe3zhOOrpsjd7bNEVohdS9NBjyctb0GQFBGKQS4ttTP-00CXiCmGXjohRTvfU02rJHb11dV_HYYCMqejhOe7tuVtdcQsIsyMqen1RSnKEyCJtdmXzfaxVZicHs3joUSyCrLOqrzP5XELfCXCOsVHkiPar0L7ntYYLrumzlJ2QFBKnM3cJapr3dp_CE8h-B3uMCjH0I8EdPzEa8yvbCQmkTS73obZ8Qg36Md40bRTvfd40KbU5xIQg0LXhrBdnUjd40cGpZkxYjh0yC0pEwjKyUrvKrJ1jy


“Our Mission…is to help” 

CITY OF SAN RAFAEL  |  1375 FIFTH AVENUE, SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA 94901 |  WWW.SRFD.ORG 

Kate Colin, Mayor  Rachel Kertz, Vice Mayor  Maribeth Bushey, Councilmember  Elias Hill, Councilmember  Maika Llorens Gulati, Councilmember 

 

The increase in expenditures is based primarily on the following: 

• Increasing classified personnel costs: 

• MRRRA conducted a salary comparison at permanent household hazardous 

waste facilities in the San Francisco Bay Area and found that salaries at the 

facility are below market. For this reason, to maintain a high level of employee 

retention, the Marin HHW facility plans to adjust HHW employees’ salaries 

between 7 to 10% during the next fiscal year. 

 

• Implementing communication tools for customers: 

• Develop online customer service tools for the website (internet bot, scheduler, 

and materials search bar). 

• Update of the hazardous waste brochure. 

The City and MRRRA through prudent fiscal management are proud to propose a budget 

increase well below the CPI-U while increasing MRRRA employee salaries substantially.  

 

Please see the budget tables on the next page. 

  

http://www.cityofsanrafael.org/DEPARTMENTS/FIRE


“Our Mission…is to help” 

CITY OF SAN RAFAEL  |  1375 FIFTH AVENUE, SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA 94901 |  WWW.SRFD.ORG 

Kate Colin, Mayor  Rachel Kertz, Vice Mayor  Maribeth Bushey, Councilmember  Elias Hill, Councilmember  Maika Llorens Gulati, Councilmember 

 

Proposed Marin HHW Program Operating Budget FY 2022/23 
    

MRRRA     

Personnel    $ 903,438 

Non-personnel   $ 1,014,044 

Total HHW Facility Operating Contractual Services: $ 1,917,482 
    

CITY    

Personnel   $ 132,492 

Non-personnel  $ 49,548 

Total City Management Oversight: $ 182,039 

Total Marin HHW Program FY 2022/23 Budget:     $ 2,099,521 
 

Marin HHW Program Operating Budget FY 2021/22 
    

MRRRA     

Personnel    $ 826,597 

Non-personnel   $ 1,021,150  

Total HHW Facility Operating Contractual Services: $ 1,847,747 
    

CITY    

Personnel   $ 132,492 

Non-personnel  $ 49,548 

Total City Management Oversight: $ 182,039 

Total Marin HHW Program FY 2021/22 Budget:     $ 2,029,786 

 

Should you need further information, please call me at the number below. 

Respectfully, 

 
 

Thomas Wong 

Senior Management Analyst 

San Rafael Fire Department 

1375 Fifth Avenue 

San Rafael, CA  94901 

(415) 458-5360 

http://www.cityofsanrafael.org/DEPARTMENTS/FIRE

	22-05-19
	Item 0 - Special Participation Instructions
	Item 1 - Open Time for Public Comment
	Item 2 - Minutes from 08262021 JPA Board Meeting
	MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE
	MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
	DRAFT MINUTES

	Item 3 - Introduce Berenice Davidson Interim Executive Director
	Item 4 - SR Fire HHW Annual Report
	Item 4 - Attach 1 - HHW Annual Report FY 20-21
	Item 5 - Demonstration of Recyclist Software
	Item 5 - Attach 1 - Recyclist Features Summary
	Item 5 - Attach 2 - Recyclist Contract
	Item 5 - Attach 3 - SB 1383 Reporting Jurisdictions Contact List
	Contacts

	Item 6 - Update on Executive Director Recruitment and Other Matters
	Item 6 - Attach 1- COM - Class Specification Planning Manager
	Item 6 - Attach 2 - Termination of HHW Agreement CoSR
	Item 7 - Pulled
	Item 8 - Draft FY 23-23 Budget and Assessments fnl
	Item 8 - Attach 1 - FY 22-23 DRAFT  Budget
	Item 8 - Attach 2 - CoSR Fire HHW Budget Proposal FY 22-23

